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Henry G. Page Jr.
 
360 Manchester Road
 

Poughkeepsie, NY 12603
 
(845) 452-2111 

Hpagejr@optonline.net 

May 17, 2011 

Mr. Chris Saporita, Esq. 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2 . -,~ 

290 Broadway, 16Th Floor . ) 

New York, New York 10007-1866 C' 

Re: Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
.,:) 

LaGrange, New York 
Docket No. CWA-02-2011-3404 .. 'I 

Dear Mr. Saporita:
 

Pursuant to our informal settlement conference on April 13, 2011, regarding the Frank
 
Farm Subdivision - Phase II, civil penalty in the amount of $55,000, Henry G. Page, Jr.
 
Development, LTD offers with Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty-Seven Dollars
 
& Seven Cents {$7,837.07} as a settlement based the following reasoning. I have listed
 
below in the identical format that was utilized by the EPA in the Findings of Violations.
 

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. If you have any questions or
 
concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at {845} 452-2111.
 

Sincerely yours,
 
Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD
 

James F. Bedore
 

cc: Henry G. Page, Jr. w/enclosures 
John Rittinger, Esq. wienclosures 
Werner Thiessen - Toll Brothers, Inc. w/enclosures 
John Lehane, P.E. - Toll Brothers, Inc. w/enclosures 
Kimberly McEathron - EPA w/enclosures 
Karen Maples - EPA w/enclosures 
Christina Zolezi, P.E. - Povall Engineering w/enclosures 

.C:\Documents and Seningsl2020\Desktopl20 10 Word\frank Fann\EPA\EPA - Saporita 5-17-2011 offer.doc 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION 2
 

290 BROADWAY
 
NEW YORK. NY 10007·1866
 

JAN 13 2011 
CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
Article Number: 70053110000059394625 

Mr. Henry G. Page, Jr., Owner 
Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, Lm 
66 Firemans Way 
Poughkeepsie, NY 12603 

RE:	 Notice of Proposed Assessment of a Civil Penalty Class II 
Frank Farnt Subdivision - Phase II, Lagrange, New York 
Docket No. CWA-02-20 11-3404 

Dear Mr. Page: 

Enclosed is a Complaint which the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA" or "Agency") is 
issuing to you as a result of our determination that Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
("Respondent"), 66 Firemans Way, Poughkeepsie, New York has violated Sections 301 and 402 of 
the Clean Water Act ("CWA" or "Act"), 33 U.S.C. §1311 and §1342. This Complaint is filed 
pursuant to Section 309(g) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1319(g). Upon consideration of the factors in 
Section 309(g), the Complaint proposes that a penalty of $55,000 be assessed against Henry G. 
Page, Jr. Development, LTD for these violations. 

You have the right to a hearing to contest the factual allegations in the Complaint. If you admit the 
allegations, or they are found to be true after you have had an opportunity for a hearing on them, you 
have the right to contest the penalty proposed in the Complaint. I have enclosed a copy of 
Consolidated Rules of Practice ("CROP"), found at 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 22, which 
the EPA follows in cases of this kind. Please note the requirements for an Answer at Section 22.15 
of the CROP. Ifyou wish to contest the allegations in the Complaint or the penalty proposed in 
the Complaint, you must file an Answer within thirty (30) days of your receipt of the enclosed 
Complaint to the EPA Regional Hearing Clerk at the following address: 

Karen Maples
 
Regional Hearing Clerk
 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
 
290 Broadway, 16th Floor
 

New York, New York 10007-1866
 

If you do not file an Answer within thirty (30) days of receipt of this Complaint, you may be judged 
to have defaulted (See, Section 22.17 of the CROP). If a default order is entered, the entire proposed 
penalty may be assessed without further proceedings. 

Regardless of whether you request a formal hearing, EPA encourages you to pursue the possibility of 
settlement by requesting an informal conference with the Agency concerning the alleged violations 
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and the amount of the proposed penalty. Please note that a request for an infonnal conference does 
not substitute for a wrinen Answer, or affect what you may choose to say in an Answer, nor does it 
extend the thirty (30) day deadline by which you must file an Answer. 

The Agency also encourages Respondents to propose and perfonn Supplemental Environmental 
Projects ("SEPs"), where appropriate, as part of any senlement. Enclosed is a copy of the Final EPA 
Supplemental Environmental Projects Policy (May 1, 1998) for your consideration. 

You may represent yourself or be represented by an anorney at any stage of the proceedings, 
including any infonnal discussions and/or a fonnal hearing, whether in person or by telephone. Any 
hearing held in this maner will be conducted in accordance with the CROP. 

If you have any questions or wish to discuss a senlement of this maner with the EPA by an infonnal 
conference, please immediately contact: 

Chris Saporita, Esq.
 
Water & General Law Branch
 
Office of Regional Counsel
 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
 
290 Broadway - 16th Floor
 

New York, New York 10007-1866
 
(212) 637-3203
 

Saporita.chris(a),epa.gov
 

For your infonnation, I am enclosing an Infonnation Sheet which may be helpful, if you are a small 
business as defined at 13 C.F.R. 121.201, in obtaining compliance assistance or if you wish to 
comment on this action to the Small Business and Agriculture Regulatory Enforcement Ombudsman 
and Regional Fairness Board. 

Should you have any questions concerning this matter, please feel free to contact Mr. Chris Saporita, 
Esq. at (212) 637-3203 or Ms. Justine Modigliani, NPDES Team Leader at (212) 637-4268. 

Sincerely, 

Dore LaPosta, Director 
Division of Enforcement and Compliance Assistance 

Enclosures 
I. Complaint 
2. Consolidated Rules of Practice 
3. Supplemental Environmental Projects 
4. Infonnation for Small Business 

cc: Joseph DiMura, NYSDEC w/enclosures 

Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 3 
CWA-02-20 J 1-3404 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION 2
 

I~ THE MATTER OF: 

PROCEEDING TO ASSESS A CLASS II CIVILHenry G. Page, Jr. Development LTD 
PENALTY66 Firemans v.,: ay
 

Poughkeepsie, NY 12603
 

DOCKET NO. CWA-02-2011-3404 SPDES General Pennit No. NYRI OH923 

Respondent 

Proceeding pursuant to Section 309(gl of 
I the Clean Water Act, 33 U.s. c. §l3l9(g) 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT
 
FINDINGS OF VIOLATION, NOTICE OF PROPOSED
 

ASSESSMENT OF A.~ ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY, AND
 
NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO REQVEST A HEARING
 

I. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY AUTHORITIES 

I.	 This Administrative Complaint, Findings of Violation, Notice of Proposed Assessment of an 
Administrative Penalty, and Notice of Opportunity to Request a Hearing ("Complaint") is 
issued under the authority vested in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency CEPA") by Section 309~g)(2)(B) of the Clean Water Act C'Act"' or "CWA"), 33 
U.S.c. § l319(g)(2)(B). The Administrator has delegated this authority to the Regional 
Administrator of EPA, Region 2, who in turn has delegated it to the Director, Division of 
Enforcement and Compliance Assistance ("DECA") of EPA, Region 2 C'·ComplainanC). 

2.	 Pursuant to Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the Act and in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of 
Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance 
or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Tennination or Suspension of Pennits 
('"CROP"), 40 C.F .R. Part 22 (2001 ), a copy of which is attached. Complainant hereby requests 
that the Regional Administrator assess a civil penalty against Henry G. Page, Jr. Development. 
LTO ("Respondent"), as a result of Complainant's detennination that the Respondent violated 
Sections 301 and 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.c. §§13l1 and 1342, respectively, by failing to 
comply with the tenns of the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation' s 
("'KYSDEC") State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("SPOES") General Pennit for 
Stonnwater Discharges from Construction Activity on a construction site it owns and operates 

'!-/­f 



II. DEFINITIONS AND STATL'TORy'PROVISIONS 

~.	 Section 301 (a) of the CWA. 33 C.S.c. §1311 (a), provides, in relevant part, that "Except as in 
compliance with [33 l' .S.c. §1312]. the discharge of any pollutant by any person shall be 
unlavvful." 

4.	 The term "person" includes an individual, corporation, partnership, association or mumcipallty, 
pursuant to Section 5021S) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1362(S). 

"	 The tenn "discharge of a pollutant" means any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters 
from any point source. pursuant to Section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1362(l2). 

6.	 The tenn "pollutant" includes, among other things, solid waste, dredged spoil, rock, sand, 
cellar dirt, sewage, sewage sludge and industrial, municipal and agricultural waste discharged 
into water, pursuant to Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1362(6). 

7.	 The term "point source" means any discernible, confined and discrete conveyance, including. 
as relevant here, any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit well, discrete fIssure, or container, 
pursuant to Section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1362(l4). 

8.	 The tenn "navigable waters" includes the waters of the United States pursuant to Section 
502(7) of the C\VA, 33 U.S.c. §1362(7). 

9.	 Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.s.c. §1342, authorizes the Administrator of EPA to grant a 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") permit authorizing the discharge 
of storm water to waters of the United States, under certain conditions. A NPDES pennit is 
required for stormwater discharges associated with construction activity that results in the 
disturbance of land equal to or greater than one acre, or construction activity that results in the 
disturbance of less than one acre, but which is part of a larger common plan of development or 
sale that will ultimately disturb equal to or greater than one acre. 40 C.F.R.§§ 122.26(b)(l4)(x) 
and (b)(l5)(i). 

10.	 The Section 402 permit program has been delegated to the State of New York, so that Persons 
regulated under 40 C.F.R. §122.26(b)(l4)(x) or 40 C.F.R. §122.26(b)(15 )(i) may comply with 
the permit requirement of Section 402 of the CWA by obtaining coverage under a State 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("SPDES") pennit from the New York State 
Department of Environmental Conservation ("NYSDEC'). 33 ll.S.C. §1342(b). NYSDECs 
SPDES General Pennit for Stonnwater Discharges from Construction Activity GP-02-0 1 
became effective on January 8. 2003 and GP-0-08-00 1 became effective on May 1, 2008 
('·CGP"). 

11.	 Pursuant to 40 C.F .R. §122.41(a), penninees are required to comply with all conditions of their 
permit, and any pennit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the CWA and is grounds for 
enforcement action. 

Henry G. Page. Jr. Development. LTD 
CWA-02-20 11-3404 



12.	 Compliance with the New York cap requires the preparation ofa Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan ("SWPPP"). The SWPPP requires, among other things, the implementation 
of stormwater best management practices ("BMPs"), weekly inspections, and the preparation 
and maintenance of weekly inspection reports. 

13.	 Sections 309(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §1319(a) authorizes the Administrator to commence 
an administrative action for violations of Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1311, or any 
permit condition or limitation implementing, inter alia, Section 301, and contained in a permit 
issued under Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1342. 

III. FINDINGS OF VIOLATION 

1.	 Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD ("Respondent") is a person within the meaning of 
Section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1362(5). 

2.	 Respondent owned and operated a 61.28 acre Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase I construction 
site ("Phase I") off Overlook Road in Lagrange, New York, since November 2004, where 
Respondent conducted, among other things, clearing, grading and excavation activities at the 
site, resulting in the total disturbance of approximately 29.17 acres ofland as documented in 
the Respondents submission received by EPA on April 9, 2010 ("submission"). According to 
the Respondent's submission, Henry G. Page Jr. serit in a Notice of Termination ("NOT") for 
the Phase I portion of the site on June 2007 at the conclusion of construction activities 
conducted by Respondent. 

3.	 Respondent has owned and operated an 88.20 acre Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
construction site ("Site" or "Facility") off Overlook Road in Lagrange, New York, since 
August 2007, where Respondent has conducted, among other things, clearing, grading and 
excavation activities at the site, resulting in the total disturbance of approximately 22.29 acres 
of land as documented in the Respondent's submission. According to Henry G. Page Jr. 
officials, construction at the Phase II site is scheduled to be completed by May 2010. 

4.	 Based on climatic data from the National Weather Service's Poughkeepsie, New York weather 
station, it rained 0.84" on August 8, 2007. Therefore, discharges of storm water associated 
with the Respondent's construction activity began on or before August 8, 2007. 

5.	 Storm water runoff that occurs from the site discharges to an unnamed tributary of the 
Wappinger Creek, a water of the United States pursuant to Section 502(7) ofthe CWA, 33 
U.S.c. §1362(7). 

6.	 Coverage for the Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase I and Phase II New York State Department 
of Environmental Conservation's ("NYSDEC") SPDES General Permit for Stormwater 
Discharges from Construction Activity Storrnwater General Permit (GP-02-01) began on 
October 28, 2004 (five business days after their NOI was received by NYSDEC). 

7.	 On December 17,2009, EPA inspectors conducted a Compliance Evaluation Inspection 
("CEl") at the site. At the time of the CEI, the EPA inspectors observed that construction 
activity resulted in the disturbance of approximately five acres of land was ongoing at the site, 
and found the following violations of the SPDES CGP: 

Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
CWA-02-20 11-3404 



a.	 For construction sites where soil disturbance activities are ongoing, a qualified 
inspector must conduct site inspections of temporary erosion and sediment controls 
once every seven (7) calendar days and after rain events greater than OS' over 24 
hours, as required by Part IV.C.2.a of the Permit. With the exclusion of three (3) 
inspection reports dated in 2007, records of weekly inspections conducted after April 
2006 were not available at the time of the EPA inspection. 

b.	 Part TV.C.4 of the Pennit requires the qualified inspector to prepare an inspection 
report subsequent to each inspection. The inspection repon dated 06/01l07 was copied. 
and this copied version was used for inspections stated to be conducted on OS/25/07 
and 06/05107. Copied versions of a single inspection repon were used in the following 
four instances: 

Instance:	 Dates shared bv single inspection repon: 

10115/2005, 10/22/2005, 10/25/2005 

2	 12/09/2005,01/03/2006, 01l1112006, 01/14/2006 

3	 02/1 0/2006,02/17/2006,02/24/2006 

4	 OS/25/2007,06/01/2007,06/0512007 

c.	 Part IV.A.1 of the Permit requires that the owner or operator must ensure that all 
erosion and sediment control practices identified in the SWPPP are maintained in 
effective operating condition at all times. The following erosion and sediment control 
practices observed on site at the time of the inspection were inconsistent with those 
identified in the SWPPP: 

1.	 The SWPPP specifies a rip rap lined swale as outlet protection for Stormwater 
Management Plan #8 (SMP-8) detention basin (AKA FF #8A). At the time of 
the inspection, the outlet to SMP-8 had exposed and disturbed soil with no 
sediment and erosion control. 

II.	 The SWPPP specifies rip rap lined swale as inlet/outlet protection to the stream 
traveling under Ridgeline Road, adjacent to SMP-8. At the time of the 
inspection the banks of the stream at the inlet and outlet had no erosion and 
sediment control. 

111.	 Temporary diversion swales and temporary sediment traps located 
approximately 100' apart along Ridgeline Drive are specified in SWPPP for 
erosion control. Significant gully erosion was observed along Ridgeline Dri\e 
at the time of the inspection. Temporary diversion swales and temporary 
sediment traps were not in place as speCIfied in the SWPPP. 

IV.	 Disturbed soil was observed along Ridgeline Drive at the time of the inspection. 
EPA inspectors observed that seeding had taken place but was not providing 
adequate erosion and sediment control. According to Mr. Page, hydro-seeding 
had been conducted in October: however. this did not result in stabilization. 

Henry G. Page. Jr. Development LTD 
CWA-02-20 11-3404 



According to the SWPPP, temporary seeding shall consist of 100 lbs pure live 
seed per acre of cereal rye during the late fall or early winter and all, seeding 
shall be covered with 2 lbs/acre of small grain straw mulch. 

v.	 Silt fencing specified in SWPPP was buried at the time of the inspection by 
adjacent material stock piles. 

d.	 Part III.A,5 of the Permit requires the owner or operator to have each of the contractors 
and subcontractors identified in Part lILA,S sign a copy of the SWPPP certification 
statement. Additionally, the certification page must identify the specific elements of 
the SWPPP for which each contractor and subcontractor will be responsible. The 
SWPPP reviewed at the time of the inspection indicated a prime contractor; however, 
the certification statement had not been signed by this or any additional contractor. The 
certification page failed to identify specific elements of the SWPPP for which each 
contractor would be responsible. 

e.	 According to Mr. Page, a fueling truck comes on site to fuel construction vehicles, and 
a contractor comes on site to change vehicle oil. The SWPPP did not contain a 
description of the pollution prevention measures that will be used to control litter, 
construction chemicals (including fuel/oil) and construction debris from becoming a 
pollutant source in the storm water discharges, as required by Part III.B.lj of the 2008 
CGP. 

f.	 Part I.B of the Pennit requires that there shall be no increase in turbidity that will cause 
a substantial visible contrast to natural conditions from a discharge. Turbid water was 
observed flowing from the detention basin and into the stream, causing substantial 
visible contrast to the natural conditions of the stream. 

8.	 On February 17,2010, pursuant to Section 309 of the CWA, EPA issued an Administrative 
Order ("AD" or "Order") (CWA-02-20 10-3022), which directed Respondent to develop a 
complete SWPPP, conduct routine inspections, and implement and maintain BMPs. 
Respondent timely complied with the Order, and its submissions in response thereto 
demonstrated that routine (minimum weekly) site inspections began on January 1, 2010. 

9.	 On May 5, 2010, EPA inspectors conducted a follow-up Compliance Evaluation Inspection 
("eEl") at the site. At the time of the follow-up CEI, the EPA inspectors observed 
construction activity that resulted in the disturbance of approximately five acres of land was 
ongoing at the site, and found the following violations of the SPDES CGP: 

a.	 Part IV .A.l of the Pennit requires that the owner or operator must ensure that all 
erosion and sediment control practices identified in the SWPPP are maintained in 
effective operating condition at all times, The following erosion and sediment control 
practices observed on site at the time ofthe inspection were inconsistent with those 
observed in the SWPPP: 

1.	 Sediment tracking was observed on Sommerset Road and Ridgeline Drive; 

11.	 Silt fencing not extended across the entire disturbed slope; 

Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, Lill 
CWA-02-20 11-3404 8 



111.	 Gully erosion was observed on bank of the detention basin near the Brook; 

IV.	 Sediment build up was observed in outlet structure of the detention basin: 

v.	 Unstabilized disturbed soil was observed along the recently paved Ridgeline 
Drive at the time of the inspection: 

VI.	 Catch basins along Ridgeline Drive draining to the detention basin. did not have 
sediment protection and contained turbid water at the time of the inspection: 

VII.	 Silt fencing located south of the model horne along a dirt road was buried at the 
time of the inspection by soil and appears to be used as a construction entrance: 

Vlll. Silt fencin!! was not keved into Qround at two locations south of the model 
~	 ~. 

home; 

IX.	 Gully erosion and sediment build up was observed along the silt fence downhill 
of the disturbed soil pile south of the model home. 

10.	 Respondent timely addressed the potential noncompliance items listed in the May 5, 2010 CEl 
report and submitted a response to EPA dated June 14, 2010 and was received by EPA on June 
21. 2010. 

11.	 Based on the Findings above. Respondent violated Sections 301 and 402 of the Act, 33 eSc. 
§§13l] and 1342. 

IV. NOTICE OF PROPOSED ORDER ASSESSING A CIVIL PENALTV 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Violation, and pursuant to the authority of Section 309(g) of the 
Act, 33 U .S.c. §l3l9(g), and the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, EPA, Region 2 hereby 
proposes to issue a Final Order Assessing Administrative Penalties ("Final Order") to Respondent 
assessing a penalty of $55,000. EPA determined the proposed penalty after taking into account the 
applicable factors identified at Section 309(g)(3) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §13l9(g)(3). EPA has taken 
account of the nature, circumstances. extent and gravity of the violation (or violations), and 
Respondent's prior compliance history, degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings accruing to 
Respondent by virtue of the violations, and Respondent" s ability to pay the proposed penalty. Based 
on the Findings set forth above, the Respondent is liable for violations of the Act, one of which has 
continued for at least nine hundred and seventy-two (972) days. EPA may issue the Final Order 
Assessing Administrative Penalties thirty (30) days after Respondent's receipt of this Notice, unless 
Respondent files an Answer to the Complaint within that time and requests a Hearing on this Notice 
pursuant to the following section. 

V. PROCEDURES GOVERNING THIS ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIO]'; 

The rules of procedure governing this civil administrative litigation have been set forth in the CROP. 
40 C.F.R. Part 22. A copy of these rules accompanies this Complaint. 

Henry G. Page, Jr. Development LTD 
CWA-02-20 J 1-3404 



A. Answering The Complaint 

Where Respondent intends to contest any material fact upon which the Complaint is based, to contend 
that the proposed penalty is inappropriate or to contend that Respondent is entitled to judgment as a 
maner of law. Respondent must file with the Regional Hearing Clerk of EPA, Region 2, both an 
original and one copy of a wrinen Answer to the Complaint, and such Answer must be filed w'ithin 
thirty (30) days after service of the Complaint. 40 C.F.R. § 22.IS(a). The address of the Regional 
Hearing Clerk of EPA. Region 2. is: 

Regional Hearing Clerk
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
 

290 Broadway, 16th floor
 
New York, NY 10007-1866
 

Respondent shall also then serve one copy of the Answer to the Complaint upon Complainant and any 
other party to the action. 40 C.F.R. §22.15(a). Respondent's Answer to the Complaint must clearly 
and directly admit, deny, or explain each of the factual allegations that are contained in the Complaint 
and with regard to which the Respondent has any knowledge. 40 C.F.R. §22.15(b). \Vhere 
Respondent lacks knowledge of a particular factual allegation and so states in the Answer, the 
allegation is deemed denied. 40 C.F.R. §22.15(b). The Answer shall also set forth: (l) the 
circumstances or arguments that are alleged to constitute the grounds of defense, (2) the facts that 
Respondent disputes (and thus intend to place at issue in the proceeding), (3) the basis for opposing 
the proposed relief and (4) whether Respondent requests a Hearing. 40 C.F.R. §22.15(b). 

Respondent's failure affirmatively to raise in the Answer facts that constitute or that might constitute 
the grounds of a defense may preclude Respondent. at a subsequent stage in this proceeding, from 
raising such facts and/or from having such facts admined into evidence at a Hearing. 

B. Opportunity To Request A Hearing 

If requested by Respondent in its Answer, a Hearing upon the issues raised by the Complaint and 
Answer may be held. 40 C.F.R. §22.15(c). If, however, Respondent does not request a Hearing, the 
Presiding Officer (as defined in 40 C.F.R. §22.3) may hold a Hearing if the Answer raises issues 
appropriate for adjudication. 40 C.F .R. §22.15(c). 

Any Hearing in this proceeding will be held at a location determined in accordance with 40 C.F.R. 
§22.2l(d). A Hearing of this maner will be conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of 
the Administrative Procedure Act,S U.S.c. §§551-59, and the procedures set forth in Subpart D of 40 
C.F.R. Part 22. 

Should Respondent request a Hea.ri.ng on this proposed penalty assessment. members of the public to 
whom EPA is obligated to give notice of this proposed action, will have a right under Section 
309(g)(4)(B) of the Act. 33 c.s.c. §i319(g)(4 )(B), to be heard and to present evidence on the 
appropriateness of the penalty assessment. Should Respondent not request a Hearing. EPA wiII issue 
a Final Order, and only members of the public who submit timely comment on this proposal will have 
an additional thiny (30) days to petition EPA to set aside the Final Order and to hold a Hearing 
thereon. EPA will grant the petition and will hold a Hearing only if the petitioner's evidence is 
material and was not considered by EPA in the issuance of the Final Order. 

Henry G. Page. Jr. Development, LTD 
CW A-02-2011-3404 



C. Failure To Answer 

If Respondent fails in any Answer to admit. deny, or explain any material factual aliegation contained 
in the Complaint, such failure constitutes an admission of the allegation. 40 C.F.R. §22.15(dl. If 
Respondent fails to file a timely Answer to the Complaint [i.e. not in accordance with the 30-day 
period set forth in 40 C.F.R. §22.] 5(a)], Respondent may be found in default upon motion. 40 C.F.R. 
§22.17(a). Default by Respondent constitutes, for purposes of the pending proceeding only, an 
admission of all facts alleged in the Complaint and a waiver of Respondent's right to contest such 
factual allegations. 40 C.F .R. §22.17(a). Following a default by Respondent for a failure to timely 
file an Answer to the Complaint any order issued therefore shall be issued pursuant to 40 C.F .R. 
§22.17(c). 

Any penalty assessed in the default order shall become due and payable by Respondent without further 
proceedings thirty (30) days after the Default Order becomes final pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §22.27(c). 40 
C.F .R. §22.17(d). If necessary, EPA may then seek to enforce such Final Order of Default against 
Respondent, and to collect the assessed penalty amount in Federal court. 

VI. INFORMAL SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE 

Regardless of whether Respondent requests a formal Hearing, EPA encourages settlement of this 
proceeding consistent with the provisions of the Act and its applicable regulations. 40 C.F.R. 
§22.18(b). At an informal conference \\lith a representative(s) of Complainant. Respondent rna) 
comment on the charges made in this Complaint and Respondent may also provide whatever 
additional information is believed to be relevant to the disposition of this matter, including: (1) 
actions Respondent has taker, to correct any or all of the violations herein alleged, (2) any informatio:: 
relevant to Complainant's calculation of the proposed penalty, (3) the effect the proposed penalty 
would have on Respondent's ability to continue in business and/or (4) an) other special facts or 
circumstances Respondent wishes to raise. 

Complainant has the authority to modify the amount of the proposed penalty, where appropriate, in 
response to any relevant information previously not known to Complainant that demonstrates that any 
of the findings herein are without merit, or that the proposed penalty is not warranted. Respondent is 
referred to 40 C.F.R. §22.18. 

Any request for an informal conference or any questions that Respondent may have regarding this 
Complaint should be directed to: 

Chris Saporita, Esq.
 
Assistant Regional Counsel
 

Water and General Law Branch
 
Office of Regional Counsel
 

l'.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
 
290 Broadway, 16th Floor
 

New York, NY 10007-1866
 
Telephone (212) 637-3203
 

The parties may engage in settlement discussions regardless of whether Respondent has requested a 
Hearing. 40 C.F.R. §22.18(b)(1). Respondent's requesting a formal Hearing does not prevent 

Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD
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Respondent from also requesting an informal settlement conference: the informal conference 
procedure may be pursued simultaneously with the fonnal adjudicatory hearing procedure. A request 
for an informal settlement conference constitutes neither an admission nor a denial of any of the 
matters alleged in the Compi aint. 

A request for an informal settlement conference does not affect Respondent's obligation to file a 
timely Answer to the Complaint pursuant to 40 C.F .R. §22.15. Note that no penalty reduction will be 
made simply because an informal settlement conference is held. 

Any settlement that may be reached as a result of an informal settlement conference shall be embodied 
in a written Consent Agreement. 40 C.F.R. §22.18(b)(2). In accepting the Consent Agreement, 
Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations in the Complaint and waive any right to appeal 
the Final Order that is to accompany the Consent Agreement. 40 C.F.R. §22.18(b)(2). In order to 
conclude the proceeding, a Final Order ratifying the parties' agreement to settle will be executed. 40 
C.F.R. §22.18(b)(3). 

Entering into a settlement through the signing of such Consent Agreement and complying with the 
terms and conditions set forth in such Consent Agreement and Final Order terminates this 
administrative litigation and these civil proceedings against Respondent (note that a new enforcement 
action may be initiated based on continued non-compliance). Entering into a settlement agreement 
does not extinguish, waive, satisfy or otherwise affect Respondent" s obligation and responsibility to 
comply with all applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, and to maintain such compliance. 

VII. RESOLVTION OF THIS PROCEEDING WITHOUT HEARING OR CO:"JFERENCE 

Instead of filing an Answer, Respondent may choose to pay the total amount of the proposed penalty 
$55,000 within 30 days after receipt of the Complaint, provided that Respondent files with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk, Region 2 (at the address noted above), a copy of the check or other 
instrument of payment. 40 C.F.R. §22.18(a). A copy of the check or other instrument of payment 
should be provided to the EPA Attorney identified in Section VI above. Payment of the penalty 
assessed should be made by sending a cashier's or certified check payable to the "Treasurer, United 
States of America", in the full amount of the penalty assessed in this complaint to the following 
addressee: 

u.S. Environmental Protection Agency
 
Fines and Penalties
 

Cincinnati Finance Center
 
P.O. Box 979077
 

S1. Louis. MO 63197-9000
 
Docket No. CWA-02-20l1-3404
 

Wire transfers should be directed to the Federal Reserve Bank of ~ ew "{ ork 

Federal Reserve Bank of~ew York
 
ABA = 021030004
 
Account = 68010727
 

SWIFT address = F~~YCS33
 

33 Liberty Street
 
New York,!'Y 10045
 

Henry G. Page, Jr. Development. LTD 
CWA-02-2011-3404 



Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agencv" 
'-' - -. ~ 

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §22.18(a)(3), if Respondent elects to pay the full amount of the penalty 
proposed in the Complaint within thirty (30) days of receiving the Complaint, then, upon EPA's 
receipt of such payment. the Regional Administrator of EPA, Region 2 (or, if designated, the Regional 
Judicial Officer). shall issue a Final Order in accordance with 40 C.F .R. §22.18(a)(3). In accordance 
with 40 C.F.R. §22.45(c)(3), no Final Order shall be issued until at least ten (10) days after the close 
of the comment period on this Complaint. Issuance of a Final Order terminates this administrative 
litigation and the civil proceedings arising out of the allegations made in the Complaint (note that a 
new enforcement action may be initiated based on continued non-compliance). Further. pursuant to 

40 C.F.R. §22.18(a)(3), the making of such payment by Respondent shall constitute a waiver of 
Respondent's right both to contest the allegations made in the Complaint and to appeal said Final 
Order to Federal court. Such payment does not extinguish. waive, satisfy or otherv·,'ise affect 
Respondent's obligation and responsibility to comply with all applicable statutory and regulatory 
requirements, and to maintain such compliance. 

VII. FILING OF DOCUMENTS 

The Answer and any Hearing Request and all subsequent documents filed in this action should be sent 
to: 

Regional Hearing Clerk
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Region2
 

290 Broadway, 16th Floor
 
New York, NY 10007-1866
 

A copy of the Answer. any Hearing Request and all subsequent documents filed in this action shall be 
sent to: 

Chris Saporita, Esq.
 
Assistant Regional Counsel
 

l1.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Region 2
 
290 Broadway, 16th Floor
 

New York, NY 10007-1866
 
Telephone (212) 637-3203
 

Fax: (212) 637-3199
 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Respondent has a right to be represented by an attorney at any stage of these proceedings. 

This Complaint does not constitute a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirements of 
the Act. regulations promulgated there under. or any applicable permit. 

Henry G. Page. Jr. Development. LTD 
CW A-02-20 1] -3404 



3.	 Neither assessment nor payment of an administrative civil penalty pursuant to Section 309(g) 
of the Act will affect Respondent's continuing obligation to comply with the Act. and with any 
separate Compliance Order issued under Section 309(a) of the Act. 33 U.S.c. §l3l9(a), for the 
violations alleged herein. 

ISSl'ED THIS [3/" DAY OF r~/w~1 , 2011. 

Dore LaPosta, Director 
Division of Enforcement and 

Compliance Assistance 
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 2 
290 Broadway 
New York, New York 10007 

Henry G. Page. Jr. Development. LTD 
CWA-02-201 1-3404 



SECTION II
 

FINDINGS OF VIOLATIONS & REPLIES
 
{EXPANDED AND REVISED}
 

Re: Henry G. Page. Jr. Development. LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange. :"lew York 
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II. FINDINGS OF VIOLATION & REPLIES ­
{EXPANDED & REVISED} 

1.	 No further response required as "Respondent" concurs with this statement. 

2.	 No further response required as "Respondent" concurs with this statement. 

3.	 No further response required as "Respondent" essentially concurs with this 
statement. The only variation being Phase II was sold to Toll Brothers, Inc. 
on June 25,2010 and the infrastructure was completed with the exception of 
wetland plantings and shrubs for both storm water management ponds on July 
16,2010. 

4.	 No further response required as "Respondent" concurs with this statement. 

5.	 "Respondent" wishes to point out, that the storm water runoff from Phase II 
after leaving the site enters an offsite stonn sewer system, approximately 
4,200' +/- in length, with one-foot minimum sumps in the catch basins to 
theoretically trap any sediment/debris prior to discharging into the Wappinger 
Creek {waters of the United States}, see Exhibit "B". 

6.	 No further response required as "Respondent" concurs with this statement. 

7.	 "Respondent" again states that at no time did total disturbance for both lot 
development and infrastructure exceed 4.9 acres at any given time. 

a.	 As stated in our responses, dated April 7, 2011, and presented to you at 
the informal settlement conference, Morris Associates, the original 
professional engineering consulting firm hired to conduct site 
inspections and inspection reports were only able to provide 22 
additional missing reports, and can not realistically explain why from 
the beginning of July 2007 to the end of December 2009 no site 
inspection was performed. 

The answer by Morris Associates, and enclosed in our April 7, 2011 
responses does not logically make practical sense. Morris Associates was 
doing all the Frank Farm Engineering & Surveying. To state that the 
storm water inspector said Phase I was completed & stabilized, sold to 
Toll Brothers, Inc. & inspection stopped at clients request. Meanwhile, 
construction of Phase II had commenced, plus there was additional Frank 
Farm Engineering & Surveying being conducted by Morris Associates. 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange, ~ew York 
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7.
 
b.	 Morris Associates also response to the duplication of reports by stating 

that no new comments were warranted, therefore no new reports were 
generated. 

This respond also does not clearly address the fact. A close look at the 
copied reports reveals that in several cases that the original report was not 
the first report. Furthennore, in one situation an original was used the first 
time & fifth time with three new inspection reports in between. 

Once these deficiencies were brought to our attention, we immediately 
hired a new professional engineering consultant, in January 2010, Povall 
Engineering, PLLC, to perfonn all required inspections in accordance with 
the NYSDEC General Pennit for Stonnwater Discharges from 
Construction Activity. Povall Engineering has been perfonning 
inspections since January 12, 2010 and continues to perfonn the 
inspections to this date. 

By calculating the number of missing site inspections and inspection 
reports at one per week during site construction activities and monthly 
during site shutdown for the time period beginning of 7/2007 to end of 
12/2009, would have resulted in eighty {80} inspections & reports. 

c. "Respondent" again states that any deficiencies that were noted during 
the inspections or during the construction day were corrected. 

1.	 As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, at the December 
17, 2009 inspection, SMP-8 was not operational and being 
used as a temporary siltation basin. The rip-rap lined swale 
was installed prior to completion of the pennanent 
detention pond as shown in photos, see Exhibit "A". 

11.	 As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, the rip-rap swale 
traversing under Ridgeline Drive was completed after the 
EPA inspection, upon completion of the pennanent 
detention pond as shown in photos, see Exhibit "A". 

Re: Henry G. Page, .Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange, "I/ew York 
Docket "10. CWA-D2-20 11-3404 
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7c. 
111.	 As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, based upon the 

existing site topography, it was not feasible to use 
temporary sediment traps along Ridgeline Drive. 
Therefore, alternative erosion and sediment control 
methods were utilized, such as roadside swales and the 
detention pond SMP-8 was temporarily used as a sediment 
basin, as shown in Photo's. see Exhibit "A". 

IV.	 As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, seeding of the 
disturbed soil was performed in October 2009 and it took; 
however, within two weeks that area had turned brown 
because ofweather conditions. The area that turned brown 
along Ridgeline Drive was re-hydroseeded in order to 
provide soil stabilization as shown on previously submitted 
InVOIces. 

v.	 As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, the damaged silt 
fencing adjacent to the material stockpiles was repaired 
and/or replaced, also stockpiles seeded & stabilized. As 
shown in Photos, see Exhibit "A". 

d. "Respondent" again states that these documents were corrected and 
provided on January 22, 2010 upon notification of deficiency. 

e. "Respondent" again states that although the original SWPPP did not 
depict all aspect of construction procedures, the methods utilized 
during Phase II are within approved guidelines set forth by NYSDEC. 
Furthermore, prior to start of any the future phases, the SWPPP will be 
amended to include additional construction items. This amendment 
will be reviewed and approved by the Town of LaGrange's Stormwater 
Management Officer and filed with NYSDEC. 

f.	 "Respondent" will agree that the EPA observed turbid water during 
there site inspection on December 17,2009. This condition was 
rectified by the end of the workday. 

8. No further response required as "Respondent" concurs with this statement. 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase" 
LaGrange, New York 
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9.	 "Respondent" again states that at no time did total disturbance for both lot 
development and infrastructure exceed 4.9 acres at any given time. 

a.	 "Respondent" states that any deficiencies noted were rectified to 
ensure effective operating conditions. "Respondent" as so maintains 
the following: 

1.	 Sediment tracking was corrected on a daily or maximum 
biweekly basis at the end of the construction day as shown in 
the street sweeping invoices. During the December 17, 2009 
{Thursday} EPA inspection, the site was machine sweep the 
following dates: Friday the 11 t\ Monda~ the 14t\ Tuesday the 
15th, Wednesday the 16th, Friday the 18t ,& again Monday the 
21. For the second EPA inspection on May 5, 2010 
{Wednesday}, the site was machine sweep on the following 
dates: Friday April 30th, Monday May 3, Wednesday the 5th, 
Saturday the 8th & Monday the loth. As shown above and 
verified by the street sweeping invoices, the site was sweep 
repeatedly to remove construction soil from road surfaces to 
ensure that no sediment would result in off-site turbidity 
occumng. 

Street sweeping invoices from January 2,2009 to March 14,2011 total 
$52,739.40 that was spent on just this one erosion control method. 

11.	 With the storm water management pond {SMP-8} located on 
lot No. 144 being utilized as a siltation basin during the course 
of construction of the infrastructure and development of Lot 
No. 144 occurring, any sediment runoff resulting from the 
missing portion of the silt fence, would emptied into the 
siltation basin, thereby causing in no environmental hazard. 
See Photo's - Exhibit "A". 

111.	 As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, the gully erosion on 
the bank: of detention pond FF # 88 was corrected at on daily 
basics {end of day} during construction of the detention pond. 
See Photo, Exhibit "A". 

iv. As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, and photo, Exhibit 
"A", the accumulated sediment was removed from the outlet 
control structure prior to being placed in service. 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
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9a. 
v.	 As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, and photos, all 

unstabilized soil all recently paved Ridgeline Drive was 
stabilized by hydroseeding. 

vi. As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, the inlet protection for 
the catch basins along Ridgeline Drive was removed in order to 
allow the detention basin to temporary act as a siltation trap. 
The catch basins have a minimum one foot sump to capture 
sediment. Also, at the time of the EPA inspection, the detention 
basins were not complete, being utilized as temporary sediment 
traps. See Photo's, Exhibit "A". 

vii. As stated in our April 7, 2011 responses, the silt fence along 
the south side of the model home was repaired by end of the 
day, see Photo's, Exhibit "A". 

viii. The silt fence, south of the model home was keyed back into 
the ground in accordance with the project plans by the end of 
the day, see Photo's, Exhibit "A". 

IX.	 The gully erosion was corrected and the accumulated sediment 
was removed by the end of the day, see Photo's in Exhibit "A". 

10. No further response required as "Respondent" concurs with this statement. 

11. Any violations were unintentional and were promptly corrected when 
brought to our attention. 

IV. NOTICE OF PROPOSED ORDER ASSESSING A CIVIL PENALTY 

We do not believe a fine in the amount of $55,000 is justified based upon 
our above responses and provided documentation. "Respondent" counter 
offers with $7,837.07 that was established. Since the civil penalty amount 
for each infraction is unidentified, we have placed a value that would 
hopefully be realistic. 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange, New York 
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SECTION III
 

CALCULATION OF VIOLATIONS
 
CIVIL PENALTY
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CALULATION OF VIOLATIONS CIVIL PENALTY
 

As declared previously, the civil penalty amount for each infraction is undisclosed; we 
have placed a value that would hopefully be realistic. 

1.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," concurs that 
this is an agreed statement. 

2.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," concurs that 
this is an agreed statement. 

3.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," basically 
concurs this is a statement. 

4.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," concurs with 
the statement. 

5.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," essentially 
concurs except as previously noted. 

6.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," concurs with 
the statement. 

7.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as this is a statement. 

a.	 The "Respondent" did have a monetary savings when Morris 
Associates failed to continue the required site inspections & inspection 
reports. The environmental harm created by having no inspections by 
Morris Associates from beginning of July 2007 to end of December 
2009 is zero, as the site was {temporarily stabilized}. It should be 
noted that The Town of LaGrange's Stormwater Management Officer 
and/or LaGrange's Director of Public Works made periodic site 
inspections. Therefore, we are offering $5,000 as settlement for this 
item. 

b.	 The duplication of inspection reports in the several incidences does not 
create any environmental harm. Basically, this is very inadequate 
documentation maintenance by the hired professional engineering 
firm. In taking the responsibility for this concern, we offer $500 as 
settlement for this item. 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD
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7c.	 The "Respondent" has previously stated that any correctable deficiencies 
were corrected, within the day, no monetary value has been assisted to this 
item. 

1.	 While SMP-8 was being utilized as a siltation basin, and the rip-rap 
swale was installed upon completion of converting the siltation basin 
into a permanent detention pond, any siltation generated flowing into 
the stream, would be very minute. Figuring that at some time within 
the time span between siltation basin and construction of the 
permanent pond & rip-rap a small amount of sediment may have 
entered the stream creating turbidity, for that reason we offer $2,500 as 
settlement. 

11.	 The rip-rap lined swale protecting the existing stream, which travels 
under Ridgeline Drive, as stated prior, was installed during completion 
of SMP-8 as shown in photo's. The outlet did have rip-rap installed, 
but not 100% as of the EPA inspection. No environmental harm 
resulted from not being 100% installed at the time of EPA inspection, 
for that reason we offer $2,500 as settlement. 

iii. The existing topography of the site, prevented utilizing the SWPPP as 
shown on the approved plans, alternate methods to control erosion & 
sediment were developed. These alternate techniques used, restricted 
sediment from leaving the site. As stated earlier, the SWPPP will be 
revised & updated prior to commencement of the future phases and 
approved by Town of LaGrange's Stormwater Management Officer. 
We offer $1,000 as settlement. 

IV.	 As stated in the April 7, 2011 responses, the temporary seeding did 
take the first time, weather conditions resulting in reseeding the areas 
which had turned brown, even though the ground was basically 
stabilized. The actual construction cost for a second seeding was 
$5,276.33 {MVK Landscaping & Metzger Construction}. By 
calculating the actual additional construction outlay, we arrive at 
$3,799.40. This was determined by taking the maximum disturbance 
area at the given time of inspection 4.9 acres minus the road surfaces 
of 1.76 acres, which results in 3.14 acres {15, 197.60 SY} to be 
temporary, seeded at $0.25 SY. 

Re: Henry G. Page. Jr. Development, LTD 
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7c. 
iv. {cont.} 

4.9 acres = 213,444.00 sq. ft. 
Roads = - 76,665.56 sq. ft. ~ 3,195'L x 24'W {Ridgeline & Sommerset Rd} 

136,778.40 sq. ft. = 15,197.60 sq. yds. @ $0.25 sq. yd. = $3,799.40 

$5,276.33 spent
 
-$3,799.40 actual cost
 
+$1,476.93 Credit
 

In light of this item, we offer $0.00 as settlement. 

v. All concerns regarding this item were corrected as shown in photos, 
Exhibit "A", we offer $1,500 as settlement. 

7d.	 The missing signatures from the SWPPP certification statement were 
corrected and provided to your previously upon notification. The 
incomplete certification resulted in zero environmental harm; we offer 
$500 as settlement. 

7e.	 While the present SWPPP did not address all aspect of site construction 
items, no environmental harm resulted. As declared previously, SWPPP 
will be revised prior to and approved before any future work commences. 
We offer $1,000 as settlement. 

7f.	 Respondent will agree, turbid water was observed during EPA inspection. 
Though this item was corrected, we offer $7,500 as settlement. 

8.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," concurs that 
this is an agreed statement. 

9.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as this is a statement. 

9a.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as this is a statement. 

i. As stated previously, street sweeping was done continuously to ensure 
that no sediment would result in off-site turbidity. A total of 

$52,739.40 was spent from January 2,2009 to March 14, 2011 as noted 
in the previously submitted street sweeping invoices and as listed below: 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange, New York 
Docket No. CWA-Q2-20 11-3404 



9a. 
i. {cont} 

1.	 Under pennit, street sweeping is required once per week. 
2.	 From January 2, to March 14,2011 is 114 weeks. 
3.	 Total spent on sweeping ~ $52,739.40 = 290 times the road 

surfaces were machine swept. 
[{290 x $160 x 5% fuel surcharge} x 8.25% tax] = $52,739.40 

4.	 As required = [{114 x $160 x 5%} x 8.25%] = $20,732.04 
5.	 290 times - 114 required = 176 additional. 

[{176 x $160 x 5%} x 8.25%] = $32,007.36 
6.	 We are donating 76 of the 176 additional sweeping time. 

[{76 x $160 x 50.10} x 8.25%] = $13,821.36 

$52,739.40 spent 
-$20,732.04 required 
-$13,821.36 donated 
+$18,186.00 Credit 

In light of this item, we offer $0.00 as settlement. 

11.	 The missing portion of the silt fence resulted in no environmental 
harm being created, as SMP-8 was being utilized as a temporary 
siltation basin. We offer $500 as settlement. 

111.	 Gully erosion was corrected at end of construction day, to prevent 
any off-site sediment occurring. We offer $1,500 as settlement. 

IV.	 As stated beforehand, any sediment was removed prior to outlet 
structure being functional and placed in service. We offer $1,000 
as settlement. 

v.	 As stated previously, any unstabilized soil along the newly paved 
Ridgeline Drive was hydroseeded within the allowable time frame. 
In light of this, no monetary value is placed on this item. 

VI.	 As declared before, SMP-8 was nonfunctional at time of EPA 
inspection, any muddy water drained into SMP-8, which was used 
as a temporary sediment trap. Consequently no monetary value 
has been assigned to this tem. 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTO 
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Vll.	 As shown in photos, silt fence south of model home was rectified. 
We offer $500 as settlement. 

Vlll.	 Again, silt fence in the two locations south of model home was 
fixed as shown in photos. We offer $500 as settlement. 

IX.	 The gully erosion and sediment build up downhill of disturbed 
stockpile south model home was corrected by end of day. 
Therefore we offer $1,500 as settlement. 

10.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," concurs with 
this statement. 

11.	 No monetary penalty placed on this item, as "Respondent," concurs that 
this is a statement. 

Re: Henry G. Page. Jr. Development. LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase rr 
LaGrange. :"'ew York 
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SECTION V
 

SUMMARY OF CIVIL PENALTY
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Summary of Civil Penalty 

Item Settlement Construction Actual Sum 
No. Fine Offered Cost of Item Cost Spent Credit {Penalty} 

{-} {+} 

1. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
2. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
3. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
4. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
5.	 $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
6.	 $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
7. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
7a. $5,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 +$ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 
Th. $ 500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 +$ 500.00 $ 5,500.00 
7c. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A +$ 0.00 $ 5,500.00 

7ci. $2,500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 +$ 2,500.00 $ 8,000.00 
7cii. $2,500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 +$ 2,500.00 $10,500.00 
7ciii. $1,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 +$ 1,000.00 $11,500.00 
7civ. $ 0.00 $ 3,799.40 $ 5,276.33 - $ 1,476.93 $10,023.07 
7cv. $1,500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 1,500.00 $11,523.07 
7d. $ 500.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 500.00 $12,023.07 
7e. $1,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 1,000.00 $13,023.07 
7f. $7,500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 7,500.00 $20,523.07 
8.	 $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $20,523.07 
9. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $20,523.07 
9a. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $20,523.07 
9ai. $ 0.00 $34,553.40* $52,739.40 - $ 18,186.00 $ 2,337.07 
9aii. $ 500.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 500.00 $ 2,837.07 
9aiii. $1,500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 +$ 1,500.00 $ 4,337.07 
9aiv. $1,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 +$ 1,000.00 $ 5,337.07 
9av. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 5,337.07 
9avi. $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 5,337.07 
9avii. $ 500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 500.00 $ 5,837.07 
9aviii. $ 500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 500.00 $ 6,337.07 
9aix. $1,500.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 7,837.07 
10.	 $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 7,837.07 
11.	 $ 0.00 $ N/A $ N/A $ 0.00 $ 7,837.07 

$27,500.00 -$ 19,662.93 $ 7,837.07 

* = 114 street sweeping {required} + 76 street sweeping donated. 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
frank farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange, New York 
Docket No. CWA-02-2011-3404 
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EXHIBIT "A"
 

SITE PHOTOGRAPHS & RELATED INFOR.1\'IATION
 

Re: Henry G. Page. Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange. New York 
Docket No. CW:\-02·2011-3404 



Site Photographs & Related Information 

-KEY­
TL = Top Left Photo. T = Top Photo. 
TR = Top Right Photo. C = Center Photo. 
BL = Bottom Left Photo. B = Bottom Photo. 
BR = Bottom Right Photo. 

Date Description 

32 10/30/09 Hydroseeding invoice from M.V.L. Landscaping, Item No. 
7.c.iv. 

33 12/24/09 Seeding invoice from Metzger Construction, Item No. 
7.c.iv. 

34 04/0511 0 TL - Clearing area SWPPP 10. 

34 04/05/ I0 TR - Outlet has protection not 100% complete, Item No. 
7.c.ii. 

35 04/12/10 TL - Clearing area SWPPP 12. 

35 04/12/10 TR - Clearing Lot # 74. 

35 04/12/10 BL - On Ridgeline Drive looking north, showing Ridgeline 
Drive as fill section - use alternate erosion control 
measures, Item No. 7.c.iii. 

35 04112/10 BR - SMP-8, used as temporary sediment trap, Item No. 
7.c.i. 

36 05/2411 0 T - Shows inlet to SMP-8 being utilized as temporary 
sediment trap, Item No. 7.c.i. 

37 06/04/2010 T - Showing SMP-8 being converted from a temporary 
sediment into permanent detention basin, Item No. 
7.c.i. 

37 06/04/20 lOB - Looking south down Ridgeline Drive, showing both 
sides of Ridgeline Drive higher then finished road 
surface, major reason for using alternate erosion 
control measures, Item No. 7.c.iii. 

Re: Henry G. Page. Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange. New York 
Docket "10. CWA-02-201l-3404 
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POVALl ENGINEERING, PLLC
 
l5 CORPORATE PARI<' DRIVE, sum c 

HOPEWelL JUNCTION, N.Y. US33 (845) 897-8205 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT CONSTRUCTION DURATION INSPECTION REPORT 

9. PHOTOGRAPHS - Continued 

IMAGE" 9 IMAGE # 10 

LOCATION: sWPPP Ph.se 10 LOCATION: Headwall at Stc 42+00 

DESCRIPTION: Open land 2rea~ SWPPF Ph.se 10 DESCRIPTION: Inlet protection, head wall and outlet pipe 

ACTION PrOVide 50i! stabil"atior, as per S\I'iFPP ACTION PrOVide inlet protection as per SWPPF pian and detail Stone SIZe 
REQUIRED, REQUIRED; usee' appea" to be sma lie' than reQ 

IMAGE" IMAGE" 

LOCATION; LOCATION: 

DESCRIPTION: DESCRIPTION: 

ACTION ACTION 
REQUIRED; REQUIRED; 
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POVALL ENG!NEERING, PlLC 
25 COIlPORAn PARK DRIVE, SUITE C 

HOPEWEUJUNCTION. N.Y. usn (845) 897-8205 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT CONSTRUCTION DURATION INSPEcnON REPORT 

9. PHOTOGRAPHS· Continued 

I 
I 

,--__I 
IMAGE' 5 IMAGE'
 

LOCATION: Phase 9 of SWPPP LOCATION:
 

DESCRIPTION: Open land area SWPPP Phase 12 DESCRIPTION: Open land area SWPPP Phase 11
 

ACTION Provide soil stabilization per SWPPP. AcnON Provide soil stabilization Per SWPPP 
REQUIRED: REQUIRED: 

6 

Approx. Lot 74 in division between SWPPP Phases 1 &3 

7 

Appx. Sta. 34+00 Ridgeline Drive 

IMAGE' IMAGE' 8 

LOCATION: LOCATION: SMPl/8 

DESCRIPTION: 5WPPP Phase l>A DESCRIPTION: Embankment Erosion 

AcnON Provide Temporary sediment traps and waterbars as per SWPPP AcnON Seed and mulch as reqUired to provide stabile slope 
REQUIRED: Stabilize areas left idle for more than 14dy REQUIRED: 

36
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Frank Farms Pg. 7 of 8 

POVALL ENGINEERING, PLLC
 
2S COl\PORATE PARI(;DRIVE. SUITE C 

HOPEWELL ~UNCTIOI\l. N.Y. :2533 (8451 897-&2D5 

STORI\'!WATER MAf\tAGEMENT CO~STRucnO~ DURATION (NSPECTION REPORT 

9. ,,?TolO'OGRA~H5· Continued 
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IMAGE' s IMAGE" 6 

LOCAnON: sWPPP Area 12 LOCATION: swppp Area 10 

OESCJl.IPTJON: Oisvurbed grO'Jnd . stabilized; Stockpiles mukhed OESCfUPTJON: DiStur:led cround stabiljzed; stockpiles mulched 

ACTION None ACTION None 
REQUIilED: REQUlRED: 

..... , ... 

IMAGE' 7 IMAGE' S 

LOCATION: SWPPP Area 11 LOCATION: SWPPP Are. 9 

DESCRIPTION: Disturbed ground has been ~eeded DESCRIPTION: DiSlurbE'C ground sE'edE'd; stockpiles mulched 

ACTION None ACTION None 
REQUIRED: REQUIRED: 



Frank Farms Pg. 8 m' 8 

i. l ; ~:~."cl·' I:f\JGff~q:E·fjllrJI~ C.'i i r 
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25 CORPORATE PARK DRIVE, SUITE C 
HOPEWELLJUNCTION. N.Y. 12533 Ill"5) 897-8205 

STC}r:fvHN.4T<:t: r.'],;.\r·L~GE!\.I!Ei\IT COi\lSTRUGlml DURt,Tl:)1\! InS;'':CTlar·: REi='Oo.T 

9. ?HOTOGRAPHS - Continued 

IMAGE/I 9 IMAGE/I 10 

LOCATION: SWPPPArea 3 LOCATION: swppp Area 2 - SMP 1188 

DESCRIPTION: Grading and earthwork DESCRIPTION: Hydroseeded and rip rap placed 

ACTION Some ground hydroseeded • no action; seed & stabmze disturbed ACTION None 
REQUIRED: area expos",d 14+ days. REQUIRED: 
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IMAGE/I 11 trMGE /I 

LOCATION: SWPPPArea 2 LOCATION: 

OESCRIPT/ON: Dist:.rrbed .rou:ld has been hydroseeded DESCRIPTION: 

ACTION None ACTION 

REQUIRED: I\eQUIFlED; 



Frank Farms Subdivision Pg. 6 of 7 

POVAll ENGINEERING, PllC
 
2S CORPORATE PARK ORIVE, SUITE C
 

HOPEWEll JUNCTION, N.Y. 12533 (845) 897·8205
 

STOR.MWATER MANAGEMENT CONSTRUCTION DURATION tNSPECTION REPORT 

9. PKOTOGRAflHS - Continued 

IMAGE. 1 IMAGE II 2 

LOCATION: SMP #8 and SWPPP Area 7 LOCATION: Stli.40+00 

DESCRIPTION: D,sturbed ground; silt fence DESCRIPTION: Stream inlet bare soil on embankment 

ACTION Seed & stabilize when disturbed area exposed 14+ days. Continue ACTION Seed & stabilize when disturbed area expo<;ed 14+ days. 
REQUIRED: sill fenct! along tep or pond embcinkment R£QUIRm: 

IMAGE I 3 IMAGE I: 4 

LOCATION; SWPPPArea 7 LOCATION: Shoulder grading SWPPP Area 6C 

DESCRIPTION: Oisturbed ground DESCRIPTION: Shoulder hJS been hayed 

ACTION Seed & stabilize when disturbed area eKposed 14+ days. ACTION None 
REQUIRED: REQUIRED: 

e.r-;
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Photograph #1 
Repaired Silt Fence ~long Dirt Road south of model home Lot #80 
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Photograph #2 
iCepaired Silt :'ence south of model home Lot #80 
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Photograph #3 
Repaired Silt Fence south of model borne Lot #80 

?hoi.Ograph #!­
Repaired Silt Fence and gully erosion south of model home Lot #80 





EXHIBIT "B" 

SITE & OFFSITE ORAWINGS & AERIAL
 

ITEM No.5
 

Re: Henry G. Page, Jr. Development, LTD 
Frank Farm Subdivision - Phase II 
LaGrange, New York 
DOtket No. CWA-02-2011-3404 


